
The City of Napavine is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 
Incorporated November 21, 1913 

 
 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Napavine City Council has scheduled a 
public hearing to be held for a Development Agreement by and between 
City of Napavine and BP Products North America, Inc., for the ARCO 
AM/PM Development.  

 
 

WHEN: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 
TIME: 6:00 p.m. 
WHERE: Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave. SW, Napavine, 
WA 98565 

 
 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive comments on the Development 
Agreement. Questions may be directed to Bryan Morris, Public Works / 
Community Director at bmorris@cityofnapavine.com . 
 
Public comment will be received by the Napavine City Council. Comments may be 
made in writing to the Napavine City Clerk, Rachelle Denham at P.O. Box 810, 
Napavine, WA 98565, via email rdenham@cityofnapavine.com , and must be 
received by Monday, July 24, 2023 at 4:30 pm or by appearing before the 
Napavine City Council at said hearing. 
 

Shawn O’Neill, Mayor 
Rachelle Denham, City Clerk 

Michelle Whitten, City Treasurer 
Bryan Morris, Public Works – 

Community Development Director 
John Brockmueller, Police Chief 

 

407 Birch Ave SW, P. O. Box 810 
Napavine, WA 98565 

Phone: (360) 262-3547 
Fax: (360) 262-9199 

www.cityofnapavine.com 
 

mailto:bmorris@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:rdenham@cityofnapavine.com


      
 

                 CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
                                                                                       Tuesday – July 25, 2023 – 6:00 PM  
                             

 
    Shawn O’Neill,

Mayor 
soneill@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Brian Watson, 
Council Position No.1 
bwatson@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Ivan Wiediger, 
Council Position No.2 
iwiediger@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Don Webster, 
Council Position No.3 
dwebster@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Heather Stewart, 
Council Position No.4 
hstewart@cityofnapavine.com 
 

Duane Crouse, 
Council Position No.5  
dcrouse@cityofnapavine.com 
 
 
Staff Members 
Rachelle Denham, 
City Clerk 
 

Michelle Whitten, 
City Treasurer 
 

Bryan Morris, 
PW Director 
Community Development 
 

John Brockmueller, 
Chief of Police 
 

Allen Unzelman 
Honorable Judge-Municipal Court 
 

Jim Buzzard, 
Legal Counsel 
 
 

City of Napavine 
407 Birch Ave SW 
P O Box 810 
Napavine, WA  98565 
360-262-3547 
 
City Website 
www.cityofnapavine.com 
 
 

**PUBLIC HEARING: DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN CITY OF 
NAPAVINE AND BP PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA, INC., FOR THE ARCO AM-PM 

DEVELOPMENT – 6:00 PM** 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
II.   INVOCATION 
III.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
IV.   ROLL CALL 
V.   APPROVAL OF AGENDA – AS PRESENTED 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

1) Regular Council Meeting Minutes– June 11, 2023 
 

VII. STAFF & COUNCIL REPORT  

VIII. PRESENTATION OF PLAQUE TO FUNTIME FESTIVAL              

IX. NEW BUSINESS 

1) Vouchers – M. Whitten 
2) ORD 650- Development Agreement BP and ARCO AM-PM – R. 

Denham 
3) AM 23-15: Liquor License Renewal Dollar General – R. Denham 
4) Lewis County Evidence Contract 2024 – Chief Brockmueller 
 

                 
                        

X. CITIZEN COMMENTS – NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

XI. ADJOURNMENT – CLOSE OF MEETING 

 
Council Meeting is held in person and via Teleconference.  

         Teleconference Information 

         Dial-in number (US): (720) 740-9753 

             Access code: 8460198 

         To join the online meeting: https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8 

mailto:soneill@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:bwatson@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:iwiediger@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:dwebster@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:hstewart@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:dcrouse@cityofnapavine.com
http://www.cityofnapavine.com/
https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8


 

NAPAVINE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
July 11, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 

Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 
 

 
 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Shawn O’Neill called the regular city council meeting to order at 6:00 pm.  

INVOCATION:  

The invocation was led by Bryan Morris. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

Mayor Shawn O’Neill led the flag salute.           

ROLL CALL:   
Council members present: Shawn O’Neill Mayor, Brian Watson Councilor #1, Ivan Wiediger Councilor #2, Don 
Webster Councilor #3, Heather Stewart Councilor #4, and Duane Crouse Councilor #5.  

City staff members present: City Clerk - Rachelle Denham, Treasurer – Michelle Whitten, PW/CD Director - Bryan 
Morris, Chief of Police – John Brockmueller.  *Absent: Court Administrator – Lacie DeWitt and Legal Counsel – Jim 
Buzzard. 

CONSENT/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOVED: Don Webster Motion: Approval of Agenda- As Presented 
 SECONDED: Heather Stewart 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried: 5 aye and 0 nay.                                        

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Approval of Minutes - Regular Council 
Meeting, on June 27, 2023 SECONDED: Brian Watson 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried: 5 aye and 0 nay.                                        

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PUBLIC HEARING - SIX YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
2024-2029  

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Approval of Minutes – Public Hearing 
Meeting Six Year Transportation Improvement 
Plan 2024-2029, on June 27, 2023 

SECONDED: Brian Watson 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried: 5 aye and 0 nay.                                        

STAFF & COUNCIL REPORTS:  

 
John Brockmueller – Chief of Police 

• No stats and will be provided next time. Chief appreciates the paved area on PD side, Durango has arrived 
and is outfitted which will be at the parade. The Dodge Charger is ready to ship.  



2 
 

 
Rachelle Denham – Clerk 

• No Report. Michelle Davis just completed her first bill cycle with minimal errors and is glad she is on her 
team. 

 
Bryan Morris - PW/CD Director   

• Report in writing.  
 
Michelle Whitten – Treasurer 

• No Report. 
 
Duane Crouse - Mayor Pro Tem 

• No Report. A question was asked to Chief Brockmueller if the STP will be re-routed. The Chief answered 
with yes, the STP will be re-routed during the parade time only. 
 

Heather Stewart – Councilor #4 
• Councilor stated the Centralia Mayor, Kelly Johnston has reached out in hopes to have a 

meeting/workshop about a Boys and Girls Club being opened in the old city hall building that has been 
purchased by an independent party who wants to do something good for the community, more to come 
of this as schedules agree. Councilor Stewart asked to be excused at the next council meeting.  

 
Don Webster – Councilor #3 

• No Report. 
 
Ivan Wiediger - Councilor #2 

• No Report. 
 

Brian Watson – Councilor #1 
• No Report.  

 
Shawn O’Neill - Mayor 

• Attended the Cheese Days and it was a great event. Had fun at the Hope Alliance golf tournament and 
won the Tumac Taproom gift basket.   
 

Greg Peterson - Fire Dist. 5  
•  Thank you to the community, he has served 30 days and has 60 more to go! He’s been working on the 

apparatus as a primary item, the area has three fire stations, used to be four. Due to equipment failures, 
there is one primary working fire truck and one backup. Working with the health dept to get functional 
bathrooms in two outlying departments. Lastly delegation of responsibilities with employees to include 
apparatus maintenance, communication system and training which will report updates to the fire chief. 
He asked the council the question What the fire dept. can do and or provide the city. The mayor spoke on 
his behalf that he’d like to see the fire department pass a levy or bond, which would allow them to get 
what is needed. The chief stated that our neighbors to the South and Winlock are funding their system at 
$1.32 per 1000, Adna 1.30 per 1000 and here is $0.87 per 1000. The mayor would like to see the fire 
department be more willing to listen to the community and present “sell” the need to the community. 
Continued conversation continued.  

 
Amy Hollinger – Planning Commission 

• Finalized RV regs and rules within city limits. Also, the adult family home and residential facilities have 
been worked on. The next meeting may not be held on the 17th   due to quorum issues, but the following 
meeting will be July 31st. 

 
 
 



3 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
VOUCHERS- M. WHITTEN  

 
 

MOVED: Don Webster Motion: Approval of the Vouchers dated July 
2023 1st Council Meeting SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

TIB Consultant Supplemental Agreement: 2023 Rush Road Pavement Repairs 6-W-963(009) – B. MORRIS 

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: Approve TIB Consultant Supplemental 
Agreement: 2023 Rush Road Pavement 
Repairs 6-W-963(009) 

SECONDED: Don Webster 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

 
TIB Updated Cost Repair: 2023 Rush Road Pavement Repairs 6-W-963(009)-1– B. Morris 

MOVED: Heather Stewart Motion: Approve TIB Updated Cost Repair: 
2023 Rush Road Pavement Repairs 6-W-
963(009)-1 

SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 

Discussion: No Discussion  
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

 

Development Agreement Per (TIA)BP Products North America, Inc., ARCO Project – B. Morris 

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Approve Development Agreement Per 
(TIA)BP Products North America, Inc., ARCO 
Project and allow Mayor, City Clerk, and the 
Attorney to sign. 

SECONDED: Don Webster 

Discussion: No Discussion  
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS – NON-AGENDA ITEMS:   

• Bryan Morris- PW/CD Director: Asked the council for assistance with a code or moratorium for short-
term rentals. Would like to have a workshop with planning commission to discuss. City Clerk will work 
with Bryan to get something scheduled in September. 

• Heather Stewart- Councilor: Had a question about Aschenbrenner on social media, Chief said that she is 
reported as a runaway and if seen please call 911 so she can be taken home.  

• Don Webster-Councilor: Would like to get a plaque and present to Jerry and Eileen Owens for fifty years 
serving the Funtime Festival. 

 

 



4 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: To Adjourn – Close of Meeting 
 SECONDED: Don Webster 

Discussion: Meeting Adjourned at 6:39 p.m. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

These minutes are not verbatim.  If so desired, a recording of this meeting is available online from 
freeconferencecall.com or at the link https://fccdl.in/VjPJnLtSwu  .  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Rachelle Denham, City Clerk  Shawn O’Neill, Mayor      Councilor 

https://fccdl.in/VjPJnLtSwu




PUBLIC WORKS & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
407 Birch Ave SW, P. O. Box 810 Napavine, WA 98565 

Phone: (360) 262-9344 Fax: (360) 262-9199 
www.napavine.wa.gov 

  

The City of Napavine is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 
Incorporated November 21, 1913 

 

 
 
 

 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Bryan Morris, PW/CD Director        
 
RE: Staff Report for Council Meeting, July 25th, 2023 
 
 
 
 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

 Meeting canceled 
 

 
 Project Updates 

 ARCO- Under construction 
 

 Scots Industries- Waiting on engineers submittal 
 
 TA- waiting for engineers offsite improvements design 

 
 AT&T Cell Tower- waiting for attorney to amend lease agreement 

 
 Roglins-   waiting for engineers sidewalk deferral and the deposit to secure water 

connections 
 

 
 Mayme Shaddock Park 

 Going to invitation of bid 
 
 
 
  Critical Areas ordinance:  waiting for ecologies approval 

 
 
 Shoreline:  Done, waiting for critical area’s approval from ecology 

 
 
  Rush Road:  awarded bid,  

 
  Jefferson Station:  working on design 

 
 Housing Action Plan:  Submitted to commerce 

 
Operations are normal 

 
 
. 



Date
Everson Asphalt Pavine, Inc
7/10/2023

911 Supply Public Safety Gear & 
Apparel
6/28/2023
6/26/2023

Aldersons Awards West 
Printwares Inc
7/14/2023

AV Capture All Inc
3/1/2023

Buzzard O'Rourke
12/26/2022

Capital Business Machines
7/6/2023
7/6/2023

City of Chehalis
7/12/2023

City of Napavine
7/10/2023

Goods Quarry
6/16/2023

Harbor Freight Tools
6/6/2023

Jackson Civil Engineering LLC

Reference Number: 38384 $19,437.42

H-12070 $19,437.42 Court/Police asphalt parking

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Reference Number: 38387 $62.76

INV-2-30313 $26.96 Patrol Uniforms Sims Smith & Warren 
NP100INV-2-30341 $50.95 Patrol Uniforms Sims Name tape

Reference Number: 38386 $77.91

Reference Number: 38389 $630.00

Reference Number: 38388 $1,617.00

2794 $1,617.00 4/1/23-3/31/2024 subsrciption  court 
h i   th

Owens Award $62.76 Funtime Festival Appreciation Owens

INV160906 $113.07 2023- 6/1-6/30 copies PD/Court

Reference Number: 38390 $330.79

INV160905 $217.72 2023 6/1-6/30 copies

10296 $630.00 2023 - TA Pass Thru

2023*June Utility Tax $10,846.71 2023- June Water/Sewer Service Utility 
T

Reference Number: 38392 $10,846.71

Reference Number: 38391 $14,043.00

2023*July WWTP $14,043.00 2023 July Monthly Sewer Treatment Costs

1018141 $58.41 3-dual cartridge resperator med
Reference Number: 38394 $58.41

Reference Number: 38393 $184.14

9337 $184.14 13.14 ton 5/8" minus

Reference Number: 38395 $19,269.88

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  1



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
7/20/2023
7/20/2023
7/11/2023
7/11/2023
7/11/2023
7/11/2023
5/16/2023
7/11/2023

LCSO-Corrections Bureau
7/11/2023

LECO Supply, Inc
7/10/2023

Lemay Mobile Shredding
7/3/2023

Lewis County Fleet Svs.
7/14/2023

Lewis County Public Health 
Department
7/12/2023

Lewis County Sheriffs Office
7/6/2023

Lewis County Treasurer
7/12/2023

Modern Marketing
6/23/2023

0016-25-03 $2,532.50 Coring Program Rush Rd

0016-26-02 $8,051.84 Finalize projects/admin/bid prep etc

0016-20-05 $2,782.50 pass Thru Rognlin Rush Rd

0016-20-06 $3,980.54 Rush Rd Pavement plans

0016-11-16 $235.00 Pass Thru Scot Industries

Reference Number: 38396 $664.99

2023*June Prisoner Medical $664.99 2023*June Prisoner Medical

0016-Gen-17 $242.50 Pass Thru ARCO

0016-27-01 $1,147.50 Jefferson Station Eng

0016-GEN-16 $297.50 Economic Alliance Meeting/project admin

Reference Number: 38398 $65.00

1643384 $65.00 PD Shred

213189 $731.95 Chlorine 2 drums
Reference Number: 38397 $731.95

Reference Number: 38400 $112.00

7051 $112.00 4 water bottles

39891 $153.51 2019 Ford F-150 oil change
Reference Number: 38399 $153.51

Reference Number: 38402 $24.54

2023*June Crime Victims $24.54 2023 -  June Court Remittance

2023*June Evidence $411.46
Reference Number: 38401 $411.46

MMI151098 $157.83 Syringe Containers-12
Reference Number: 38403 $157.83

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  2



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
Mountain Mist
7/17/2023

Owen Equipment
7/11/2023

PND Engineers, Inc.
7/17/2023

Rodda Paint Co
7/11/2023

State Treasurer's Office
7/12/2023

The Glass Guy
7/12/2023

The Police and Sheriffs Press
7/12/2023

Total Filtration Services, INC
1/20/2023

Transient Vendor
7/12/2023

Transient Vendor
6/29/2023

Transient Vendor

Reference Number: 38404 $23.67

005494283 $23.67 2-5 gal water jugs PD/Court

Reference Number: 38406 $4,989.70

2307152 $4,989.70 Final Design Mayme shelter

00212958 $695.49 street sweeper brushes
Reference Number: 38405 $695.49

Reference Number: 38408 $597.89

2023*June State Remit $597.89 2023*June State Remit

43105013 $545.63 2-5 gal yellow 2-5 gal white TP II
Reference Number: 38407 $545.63

Reference Number: 38410 $17.60

180056 $17.60 ID Cards Nichols

669-3007624 $289.98 06 Silverado Windshield
Reference Number: 38409 $289.98

Reference Number: 38412 $236.49

1160.0 Neiser $236.49

2618365-00 $109.26 Filters 48
Reference Number: 38411 $109.26

Reference Number: 38414 $103.00

2689.0 Slinkard $798.56 Refund Overpayment Acc 2689.0
Reference Number: 38413 $798.56

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  3



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
7/12/2023

US Bank Corp Payment Syst
6/30/2023
7/5/2023
6/12/2023
6/12/2023
6/13/2023
6/13/2023
6/14/2023
6/16/2023
6/20/2023
6/20/2023
6/26/2023
6/27/2023
6/27/2023
6/27/2023
6/6/2023
6/6/2023
6/7/2023
6/7/2023
6/7/2023
6/9/2023
7/20/2023
6/12/2023
6/21/2023
6/22/2023
6/24/2023
6/20/2023
6/30/2023
6/6/2023

2993.0 Longanecker $103.00 Refund Overpayment Acc 2993.0

2023*6/12 Amazon $334.99 Surge Protectors - Court AOC grant

2023*6/12 USPS $8.13 Court Postage

2023* 6/30 USPS-1 $16.50 PD Postage

2023* July 5 Soft Touch $12.45 2023* July 5 Soft Touch

Reference Number: 38415 $3,226.38

2023*6/20 Amazon $426.88 TV Cart Court

2023*6/20 Walmart $582.12 Large Screen TV Court

2023*6/14 Tractor Supply $173.11 pump 60 PSI

2023*6/16 USPS $8.13 PD Postage

2023*6/13 CCFAB $17.27 Lawn mower repair

2023*6/13 USPS $25.59 Court Postage

2023*6/6 Amazon $173.53 Totes PW keyboard/mouse

2023*6/6 The Paintstore $316.01 Marking Paint - blue green white

2023*6/27 usps $7.50 postage Water/sewer cust

2023*6/27 usps -1 $9.17 postage Water/sewer cust

2023*6/26 USPS $13.80 postage Water/sewer cust

2023*6/27 Amazon $29.14 hole punch/ tape

2023*July Free Conference $3.24 2023*July Free Conference

2023*June 12 Walmart $18.26 hose

2023*6/7 Tractor Supply $194.61 Hydr Fluid

2023*6/9 AMAZON $82.94 locking dropbox

2023*6/7 Amazon $60.56 Microphone stands -AOC grant

2023*6/7 O'Reilly $49.76 Fuel Wtr Sep

2023*June 30 USPS $63.00 Court Postage

2023*June 6 Soft Touch $12.45 2023*June 6 Soft Touch

2023*June 24 Glint Car Wash $18.00 2023*June 24 Glint Car Wash

2023*June 27 ZOOM $17.03 2023*June 27-Jul 26

2023*June 21 Soft Touch $12.45 2023*June 21 Soft Touch

2023*June 22 ICC $290.00 Building Inspector Exam

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  4



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
6/6/2023
6/6/2023

US Bank NA Cincinnati
6/30/2023

Utilities Underground Location 
Center
6/30/2023

Washington State Patrol
7/3/2023

Toledotel
6/1/2023
7/1/2023

Office of Support Enforcement
7/18/2023

WAVE
5/17/2023

WAVE
5/17/2023

WAVE
5/23/2023

Dept of Revenue
7/11/2023

2023*June Bond Maint $26.00 2023 -June  Bond Fee
Reference Number: 38416 $26.00

2023*June 6 USPS $15.60 postage Water/sewer cust

2023*June 8 Staples $234.16 key tags/file folders etc

123007163 $26.50 CPL Background Checks Minkoff & Rouse
Reference Number: 38418 $26.50

Reference Number: 38417 $21.93

3060195 $21.93 2023 June Locates 17

Reference Number: 38420 $228.00

Child Support - 14761 $228.00

10025822 $351.87 2023*jul 1-30

Reference Number: 38419 $2,968.81

10023547 $2,616.94 2023 may9- June 30 phone system and 
 h

Reference Number: EFT*20230717 $121.87

032776101-0010165 $121.87 2023-  WAVE Phone 5/19-6/18

104979801-0010165 $442.88 2023-  WAVE Phone & Internet 5/19-6/18
Reference Number: EFT*20230716 $442.88

Reference Number: EFT*20230719 $8,341.02

2023*June DOR $8,341.02

032768701-0010175 $91.27 2023-  WAVE Phone & Internet 5/23-6/22
Reference Number: EFT*20230718 $91.27

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  5



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Dept of Labor & Industry
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023

Emp L&I - 14684 $7.11

Emp L&I - 14685 $15.08

Emp L&I - 14682 $239.24

Emp L&I - 14683 $89.31

Reference Number: EFT*20230720 $7,246.11

Emp L&I - 14690 $102.02

Emp L&I - 14691 $99.23

Emp L&I - 14688 $84.96

Emp L&I - 14689 $207.04

Emp L&I - 14686 $11.27

Emp L&I - 14687 $12.37

Emp L&I - 14696 $264.55

Emp L&I - 14697 $109.15

Emp L&I - 14694 $17.28

Emp L&I - 14695 $13.55

Emp L&I - 14692 $213.94

Emp L&I - 14693 $92.02

Emp L&I - 14702 $59.54

Emp L&I - 14703 $14.91

Emp L&I - 14700 $15.84

Emp L&I - 14701 $16.94

Emp L&I - 14698 $14.91

Emp L&I - 14699 $18.21

Emp L&I - 14708 $52.91

Emp L&I - 14709 $17.53

Emp L&I - 14706 $109.15

Emp L&I - 14707 $172.53

Emp L&I - 14704 $144.93

Emp L&I - 14705 $103.88

Emp L&I - 14710 $14.91

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  6



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023

Emp L&I - 14716 $18.13

Emp L&I - 14717 $106.67

Emp L&I - 14714 $18.30

Emp L&I - 14715 $10.84

Emp L&I - 14713 $14.91

Emp L&I - 14722 $241.54

Emp L&I - 14723 $46.01

Emp L&I - 14720 $103.57

Emp L&I - 14721 $84.34

Emp L&I - 14718 $14.91

Emp L&I - 14719 $200.13

Emp L&I - 14728 $218.54

Emp L&I - 14729 $109.15

Emp L&I - 14726 $230.04

Emp L&I - 14727 $109.15

Emp L&I - 14724 $13.04

Emp L&I - 14725 $14.91

Emp L&I - 14734 $94.27

Emp L&I - 14735 $14.74

Emp L&I - 14732 $14.31

Emp L&I - 14733 $13.89

Emp L&I - 14730 $13.72

Emp L&I - 14731 $14.74

Emp L&I - 14740 $92.02

Emp L&I - 14741 $18.68

Emp L&I - 14738 $93.65

Emp L&I - 14739 $124.22

Emp L&I - 14736 $230.04

Emp L&I - 14737 $109.15

Emp L&I - 14742 $14.91

Emp L&I - 14743 $39.69

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  7



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/17/2023

Emp L&I - 14746 $12.71

Emp L&I - 14747 $8.05

Emp L&I - 14744 $197.83

Emp L&I - 14745 $79.38

Emp L&I - 14752 $223.14

Emp L&I - 14753 $97.37

Emp L&I - 14750 $97.37

Emp L&I - 14751 $13.55

Emp L&I - 14748 $14.74

Emp L&I - 14749 $12.20

Emp L&I - 14758 $12.96

Emp L&I - 14759 $13.55

Emp L&I - 14756 $37.83

Emp L&I - 14757 $23.00

Emp L&I - 14754 $75.66

Emp L&I - 14755 $179.43

L&I - 14686 $6.86

L&I - 14687 $7.53

L&I - 14684 $4.33

L&I - 14685 $9.18

L&I - 14682 $41.59

L&I - 14683 $21.67

L&I - 14692 $37.19

L&I - 14693 $16.00

L&I - 14690 $24.75

L&I - 14691 $24.08

L&I - 14688 $20.62

L&I - 14689 $35.99

L&I - 14696 $45.99

L&I - 14694 $10.53

L&I - 14695 $8.26

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  8



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023

L&I - 14698 $9.08

L&I - 14699 $11.09

L&I - 14697 $26.48

L&I - 14704 $25.19

L&I - 14705 $25.20

L&I - 14702 $14.45

L&I - 14703 $9.08

L&I - 14700 $9.65

L&I - 14701 $10.32

L&I - 14710 $9.08

L&I - 14713 $9.08

L&I - 14708 $9.20

L&I - 14709 $10.68

L&I - 14706 $26.48

L&I - 14707 $29.99

L&I - 14718 $9.08

L&I - 14719 $34.79

L&I - 14716 $11.04

L&I - 14717 $25.88

L&I - 14714 $11.15

L&I - 14715 $6.60

L&I - 14724 $7.95

L&I - 14725 $9.08

L&I - 14722 $41.99

L&I - 14723 $8.00

L&I - 14720 $25.13

L&I - 14721 $20.46

L&I - 14728 $37.99

L&I - 14729 $26.48

L&I - 14726 $39.99

L&I - 14727 $26.48

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  9



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023

L&I - 14730 $8.36

L&I - 14731 $8.98

L&I - 14736 $39.99

L&I - 14737 $26.48

L&I - 14734 $22.87

L&I - 14735 $8.98

L&I - 14732 $8.72

L&I - 14733 $8.46

L&I - 14742 $9.08

L&I - 14743 $9.63

L&I - 14740 $16.00

L&I - 14741 $11.38

L&I - 14738 $22.72

L&I - 14739 $21.59

L&I - 14748 $8.98

L&I - 14749 $7.43

L&I - 14746 $7.74

L&I - 14747 $4.90

L&I - 14744 $34.39

L&I - 14745 $19.26

L&I - 14754 $18.36

L&I - 14755 $31.19

L&I - 14752 $38.79

L&I - 14753 $23.62

L&I - 14750 $23.62

L&I - 14751 $8.26

L&I - 14758 $7.89

L&I - 14759 $8.26

L&I - 14756 $9.18

L&I - 14757 $4.00

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  10



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
WA Employment Security - PFML

5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/2/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023
5/17/2023

Reference Number: EFT*20230721 $1,334.95

PFML - 14686 $15.99

PFML - 14687 $15.73

PFML - 14684 $5.96

PFML - 14685 $22.67

PFML - 14682 $34.48

PFML - 14683 $14.53

PFML - 14692 $20.88

PFML - 14693 $6.12

PFML - 14690 $24.84

PFML - 14691 $16.86

PFML - 14688 $18.36

PFML - 14689 $18.85

PFML - 14698 $12.30

PFML - 14699 $26.23

PFML - 14696 $34.77

PFML - 14697 $15.45

PFML - 14694 $27.62

PFML - 14695 $15.70

PFML - 14704 $17.02

PFML - 14705 $25.30

PFML - 14702 $16.45

PFML - 14703 $12.29

PFML - 14700 $15.99

PFML - 14701 $15.73

PFML - 14710 $15.70

PFML - 14708 $3.52

PFML - 14709 $20.00

PFML - 14706 $15.99

PFML - 14707 $18.86

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  11



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/2/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023
6/16/2023

PFML - 14713 $12.30

PFML - 14718 $12.29

PFML - 14719 $18.65

PFML - 14716 $22.75

PFML - 14717 $18.82

PFML - 14714 $26.40

PFML - 14715 $15.99

PFML - 14724 $30.39

PFML - 14725 $15.70

PFML - 14722 $24.88

PFML - 14723 $3.06

PFML - 14720 $24.84

PFML - 14721 $16.86

PFML - 14730 $12.30

PFML - 14731 $20.80

PFML - 14728 $26.17

PFML - 14729 $14.99

PFML - 14726 $24.02

PFML - 14727 $14.07

PFML - 14736 $21.64

PFML - 14737 $24.84

PFML - 14734 $17.26

PFML - 14735 $12.08

PFML - 14732 $15.99

PFML - 14733 $15.73

PFML - 14742 $15.70

PFML - 14743 $4.10

PFML - 14740 $6.12

PFML - 14741 $25.97

PFML - 14738 $15.99

PFML - 14739 $18.30

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  12



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023
7/3/2023

DE Lage Landen Financial 
Services
7/8/2023

Cintas Corp
7/13/2023

Dept of Retirement Systems
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023

PFML - 14748 $15.99

PFML - 14749 $15.76

PFML - 14746 $12.30

PFML - 14747 $19.61

PFML - 14744 $26.64

PFML - 14745 $14.07

PFML - 14754 $16.86

PFML - 14755 $19.55

PFML - 14752 $20.98

PFML - 14753 $24.84

PFML - 14750 $18.82

PFML - 14751 $12.08

Reference Number: EFT*20230722 $464.00

PFML - 14758 $23.12

PFML - 14759 $15.70

PFML - 14756 $3.91

PFML - 14757 $1.53

Reference Number: EFT*20230724 $7,111.46

Reference Number: EFT*20230723 $47.78

5166705211 $47.78 burn relief/ibuprofen

80373414 $464.00 2023 7/2-7/31  Sharp MX307105

Emp Rtmt - 14765 $257.91

Emp Rtmt - 14766 $275.95

Emp Rtmt - 14762 $198.37

Emp Rtmt - 14764 $316.36

Emp Rtmt - 14760 $254.70

Emp Rtmt - 14761 $234.40

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  13



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023

Dept of Treasury Internal Revenue 
Service
7/18/2023
7/18/2023

Emp Rtmt - 14771 $257.92

Emp Rtmt - 14772 $183.23

Emp Rtmt - 14769 $153.99

Emp Rtmt - 14770 $400.77

Emp Rtmt - 14767 $263.67

Emp Rtmt - 14768 $194.83

Taxable Retirement  - 14760 $409.92

Taxable Retirement  - 14761 $158.76

Emp Rtmt - 14776 $253.22

Emp Rtmt - 14777 $40.39

Emp Rtmt - 14774 $234.57

Emp Rtmt - 14775 $322.68

Taxable Retirement  - 14767 $178.59

Taxable Retirement  - 14768 $131.96

Taxable Retirement  - 14765 $174.69

Taxable Retirement  - 14766 $186.91

Taxable Retirement  - 14762 $134.36

Taxable Retirement  - 14764 $214.27

Taxable Retirement  - 14774 $213.09

Taxable Retirement  - 14775 $240.55

Taxable Retirement  - 14771 $174.69

Taxable Retirement  - 14772 $294.90

Taxable Retirement  - 14769 $247.84

Taxable Retirement  - 14770 $271.45

Federal Income Tax - 14760 $746.34

Federal Income Tax - 14761 $272.53

Reference Number: EFT*20230725 $7,128.77

Taxable Retirement  - 14776 $171.51

Taxable Retirement  - 14777 $65.01

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  14



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023

Federal Income Tax - 14767 $238.60

Federal Income Tax - 14768 $201.54

Federal Income Tax - 14765 $234.05

Federal Income Tax - 14766 $402.90

Federal Income Tax - 14762 $149.15

Federal Income Tax - 14764 $372.67

Federal Income Tax - 14773 $190.19

Federal Income Tax - 14774 $208.01

Federal Income Tax - 14771 $150.49

Federal Income Tax - 14772 $499.89

Federal Income Tax - 14769 $386.77

Federal Income Tax - 14770 $650.21

Medicare - 14760 (2) $70.12

Medicare - 14761 (1) $36.20

Federal Income Tax - 14777 $56.01

Medicare - 14760 (1) $70.12

Federal Income Tax - 14775 $441.05

Federal Income Tax - 14776 $143.69

Medicare - 14764 (2) $48.85

Medicare - 14765 (1) $39.83

Medicare - 14762 (2) $30.63

Medicare - 14764 (1) $48.85

Medicare - 14761 (2) $36.20

Medicare - 14762 (1) $30.63

Medicare - 14767 (2) $40.72

Medicare - 14768 (1) $30.08

Medicare - 14766 (2) $42.61

Medicare - 14767 (1) $40.72

Medicare - 14765 (2) $39.83

Medicare - 14766 (1) $42.61

Medicare - 14768 (2) $30.08

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  15



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023

Payroll Vendor
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023

Medicare - 14770 (2) $61.89

Medicare - 14771 (1) $39.83

Medicare - 14769 (2) $42.27

Medicare - 14770 (1) $61.89

Medicare - 14769 (1) $42.27

Medicare - 14773 (2) $27.26

Medicare - 14774 (1) $36.66

Medicare - 14772 (2) $50.46

Medicare - 14773 (1) $27.26

Medicare - 14771 (2) $39.83

Medicare - 14772 (1) $50.46

Medicare - 14776 (2) $39.10

Medicare - 14777 (1) $11.05

Medicare - 14775 (2) $49.83

Medicare - 14776 (1) $39.10

Medicare - 14774 (2) $36.66

Medicare - 14775 (1) $49.83

Reference Number: July 1-15, 2023 $34,104.20

Social Security Tax - 14773 (2) $116.58

Social Security Tax - 14774 $156.74

Medicare - 14777 (2) $11.05

Social Security Tax - 14773 (1) $116.58

ACH Pay - 14765 $1,929.26

ACH Pay - 14766 $2,230.90

ACH Pay - 14762 $1,625.68

ACH Pay - 14764 $2,312.46

ACH Pay - 14760 $3,309.05

ACH Pay - 14761 $1,568.80

ACH Pay - 14767 $2,211.52

ACH Pay - 14768 $1,579.70

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  16



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023
7/18/2023

TOTAL

The following voucher/warrants/electronic payments are approved for payment:
Accounts Payable 84 34 83,556.19       38384-38419
Payroll Vendors 1 1 228.00             38420
Electronic Payme 6 6 9,508.82          EFT*20230716-19/22-23

Electronic Payrol 4 4 22,821.29       EFT*20230721-21/24-25
ACH Direct Depo 17 17 34,104.20       Direct Deposit 7/20/2023

Total Vouchers 112 62 150,218.50     
Void Check 38383 & 38385

WE, THE FOLLOWING SIGNEES, APPROVE THE VOUCHERS FOR PAYMENT:

MAYOR: __________________________________________________________

TREASURER: _________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #1: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #2: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #3: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #4: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #5: ___________________________________________________

ACH Pay - 14771 $1,751.52

ACH Pay - 14772 $2,419.45

ACH Pay - 14769 $2,084.90

ACH Pay - 14770 $2,870.57

ACH Pay - 14777 $594.17

$150,218.50 

ACH Pay - 14775 $2,286.02

ACH Pay - 14776 $1,898.72

ACH Pay - 14773 $1,502.70

ACH Pay - 14774 $1,928.78

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  17



Date

Voucher Activity July 25, 2023
July 2023 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Police Department - John Brockmueller_____________________________

Public Works/Community Development - Bryan Morris ________________

Court- Lacie Dewitt _______________________________________________

City Clerk - Rachelle Denham:_____________________________________

DATED THIS     DAY OF             ,2023

July 25, 2023 Second Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity  18



City of Napavine Ordinance No. 650  1 of 2  

CITY OF NAPAVINE, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 650 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAPAVINE, WASHINGTON,  
APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR PROPERTY 
OWNED BY BP PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA INC. ON RUSH ROAD 
IN THE CITY OF NAPAVINE; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

RECITALS:  

WHEREAS, the City of Napavine, Washington (the “City”) is a Code City under the laws of the 
State of Washington; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35A.11.020, the City may adopt and enforce ordinances of all kinds 
relating to and regulating the City’s local or municipal affairs and appropriate to the good 
government of the City; and 

WHEREAS, BP PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA, INC., owns an approximately 1.93-acre site 
south of the Hamilton Road and Rush Road intersection in Napavine, Washington, and 

WHEREAS, BP PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA, INC., has requested that the City and BP 
PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA, INC., enter into a development agreement in order to set forth 
the development standards and other provisions that will govern and vest the development, use, 
and mitigation of more than 2,900-square-foot ARCO ampm convenience store, a 129- by 49-foot 
fuel canopy with eight (8) multi-product dispensers (MPDs), a 25,000-gallon underground storage 
tank (UST), and a 22,000-gallon split UST (12,000/10,000) allocated for diesel and premium fuel. 
Additionally, the project will include the construction of a truck stop consisting of a 69- by 24-
foot canopy over four (4) diesel islands, three (3) underground storage tanks, including two (2) 
20,000-gallon USTs for diesel fuel, and one (1) 8,000-gallon UST for diesel exhaust fluid (DEF). 
Site improvements will include surface parking for 17 vehicles, including eight (8) EV charging 
spaces, interior and perimeter landscaping, directional ground painting, and a trash and recycling 
enclosure on the aforementioned BP PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA, INC., property, and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70B.200, the Napavine City Council held a public hearing on 
the proposed agreement on ____________, 2023, and after considering all testimony presented at 



City of Napavine Ordinance No. 650  2 of 2  

the public hearing, determined that a development agreement for the aforementioned BP 
PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA, INC., property should be approved as set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NAPAVINE, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Non-Codified Ordinance. This Ordinance shall not be codified. 

Section 2. Development Agreement Approved. That certain agreement entitled, “ARCO 
am/pm Development Agreement” attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 
reference as if set forth in full, is hereby approved and shall govern development of the 
aforementioned ARCO am/pm property described in said agreement. The Mayor is hereby 
authorized to execute the development agreement on behalf of the City. 

Section 3. Recording. As provided in RCW 36.70B.190, a signed original of the agreement 
shall be recorded with the real property records of Lewis County, Washington and shall be binding 
on the parties and their successors and assigns. 

Section 4. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance should 
be held to be unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 
clause, or phrase of this Ordinance. 

Section 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect on the date included in the 
Development Agreement, or as otherwise provided by law.  

Section 6. Corrections. The City Clerk and the codifiers of this ordinance are authorized to 
make necessary corrections to this ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of 
scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance numbers, section/subsection numbers, and any 
references thereto.  

PASSED by the Council of the City of Napavine, Washington, and APPROVED by the Mayor 
of the City of Napavine at a regularly scheduled open public meeting thereof, this    day of 
July, 2023. 

 

  Shawn O’Neill, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 

 Approved as to form: 
 
 

Rachelle Denham, City Clerk 
 

 James M.B. Buzzard, WSBA # 33555 
City Attorney 

 

Approved Reading: /2023 
Publication Date: /2023 
Effective Date: /2023 

 



 

 
City of Napavine 

Action Memorandum No. 23-15 
 

AM 23-15: Notice of Liquor License Renewal – Dollar General Store #20770  

 
Originator: Rachelle Denham, City Clerk   Prepared Date: July 12, 2023 

Agenda Date: July 25, 2023 

Route to: Department Head Signature Date 
X No Objections Chief of Police   
X No Objections City Clerk   

 

Review by Mayor Shawn O’Neill: ___________________________________________________________________________, 

Attachment(s): Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board Liquor License Renewal Applications 
list.  

1) Dollar General Store #20770 expires October 31, 2023. 

Fiscal Impact:  yes    no  

Summary statement: The City received a letter from the Washington State Liquor and Cannabis 
Board a list of liquor license renewal applications in City of Napavine Jurisdiction.  

Pursuant to RCW 66.24.010(8) allows the City to object to license renewal request.  

To object to the liquor license renewal: fax or mail a letter to the Washington State Liquor and 
Cannabis board (WA-LCB) Licensing Division  

Objection letter must be received by the Boards Licensing Division at least 30 days prior to the 
license expiration date. If you need additional time, you must request that in writing.   

Staff Recommendation:  

• Approve: Dollar General Store #20770 liquor licenses renewal.   

 

Approved  Denied  
Date Action Taken  
Attest:  

 



CO91080-2 WASHINGTON  STATE LIQUOR  AND  CANNABIS  BOARD DATE:  07/06/2023

l

LICENSED  ESTABLISHMENTS  IN
(BY  ZIP  CODE)  FOR

INCOFIPORATED  AFIEAS  CITY  OF  NAPAVINE
EXPIRATION  DATE  OF  20231031

LICENSEE BUSINESS  NAME AND ADDRESS

LICENSE
NUMBER PRIVILEGES

DG STRATEGIC  VII,  LLC DOLIAR  GENERAL  STORE 4120770

417  BIRCH  AVE SW
NAPAVINE  WA 98565  0000

43  03 01 (,ROCERY STORE

GROCERY STORE
BEER/WINE
BEER/WINE



Washington  State
Liquor  and  Cannabis  Board
Pa Box  43098, Olympia  WA 98504-3098,  (360)  664-1600

MAYOR  OF  NAPAVINE
CITY  HALL
NAPAVINE,  WA 98565



Washington  State
Liquor  and  Cannabis  Board
Pa Box 43098  , Olympla  WA 98504-3098,  (360)  664-1600

www.liq.wa.gov  Fax  #:  (360)  753-2710

July  06,  2023

Dear  Local  Authority  :
RE:  Liquor  License  Renewal  Applications  in  Your  Jurisdictlon Your  Object1on  Opportun  lty

Enc1osed  p1  ease  find  a list  of  liquor-11censed  pr  emises  in  your  j ur1sd  lction  whose
This  is  your  opportunity  to  object  to  these  11cense  renewal  requests  as  authorlzed

11quor  11censes  wlll  expire  in  about  90  days.
by  RCW 66.24.010  (8).

1 ) O b i e c t  i  o n t  o L i  c e n s e R e n ewa  l

To  object  to  a liquor  license  renewal:
Division.  This  letter  must:

fax  or mall  a letter  to  the  Washlngton  State  Llquor  and  Cannabis  Board  (WS-LCB)  Licensing

o Detail  the  reason(s)  for  your  objection,  including
based.  You  may  include  attachments  and  supporting
based.

a st  at  ement  of  a11  the  fa  c ts  upon  wh1  c h your  obj  e c tion  or  obj  ections  are
documents  whlch  contaln  or  conflrm  the  facts  upon  which  your  objections  are

o Please  note  that  whether  a hearing  will  be  granted  or  not  ls  within  the  Board's  dlscretlon  per  RCW 86.24.010  (8)  (d).

Your  letter  or  fax  of  objection  must  be  received  by  the  Board's  Llcenslng  Divlsion  at  least  30  days  prior  to  the  license
expiration  date.  If  you  need  additional  time  you  must  request  that  in  writing.  Please  be  aware,  however,  that  it  is  within
the  BOard'S  discretion  tO  grant  Or  deny  any  requests  far  extension  Of  time  tO  Submit  Objectting.  YOur  request  far  eXtension
will  be  granted  or  denied  in  writing.  If  objections  are  not  timely  recelved,  they  will  not  be  considered  as  part  of  the
renewal  process.

A copy  of  your  objection  and  any  attachments  and  supportlng  materlals  will  be  made  available  to  the  licensee,  therefore,  it  is  the
Local  Authority's  responsibility  to  redact  any  confidential  or  non-disclosable  informatlon  (see  RCW 42.56)  prior  to  submission  to
the  WSLCB.

:  ) St  atus  of  License  Wh ile  Obi  ection  Pendinq

During  the  time  an  objection  to  a renewal  is  pending,
licenses  are  regularly  issued  to  the  licensee  until  a

the  permanent  liquor  11cense  ls  placed  on  hold.
final  decislon  is  made  by  the  Board.

3)  Procedure  Following  Licensing  Divjsion  Receipt  of  Objection

However,  temporary

After  we  receive  your  objection,  our  licensing  staff  will  prepare  a report  for  review  by  the  Licensing  Director.  The  report
will  include  your  letter  o'f  objection,  as  well  as  any  attachments  and  supportlng  documents  you  send.  The  Licensing  Director
will  then  decide  to  renew  the  liquor  license,  or  to  proceed  with  non-renewal.

4)  Procedure  if  Board  Does  Not  Renew  License

If  the  Board  decides  not  to  renew  a license,  we will  notify  the  licensee  in  wrltlng,  stating  the  reason  for  this  decision.  The
licensee  also  has  the  right  to  request  a hearing  to  contest  non-renewal  of  their  liquor  license.  RCW 66.24.010  (8)  (d).  If  the
licensee  makes  a timely  request  for  a hearing,  we  will  notify  you.

rhe  soard's  Licensing  Division  will  be  required  to  present  evidence  at  the  hearlng  before  an  administrative  law  judge  to
support  the  non-renewal  recommendation.  You  may  present  evldence  in  support  of  your  objection  or  objections.  The  administrative
law  judge  will  consider  all  of  the  evidence  and  issue  an  initial  order  for  the  Board's  review.  The  Board  members  have  final
authority  to  renew  the  liquor  license  and  will  enter  a final  order  announcinq  their  decislon.



5)  Procedure  if  Board  Renews  License  Over  Your  Objection

If the Board decides  to renew the license  over your objection,  you will  be  notifled  ln wrlting.  At  that  tlme,  you  may  be
given an opportunity  to request  a hearing.  An opportunlty  for  a hearing  is offered  at the  Board's  discretion.  If  a hearing
is held,  you will  be responsible  for  presenting  evidence  before  an Admlnistratlve  Law Judge  ln  support  of  your  objection  to
license  renewal.  The Board's  Licensing  Division  will  present  evldence  ln  support  of  11cense  renewal.  The  Licensee  may
also participate  and present  evidence  if  the 11censee  desires.  The admlnlstrative  law  judge  will  consider  all  of  the  evidence,
and issue  an initial  order  for  the Board's  review.  The Board  members  have  final  authority  to  renew  the  liquor  license  and
will  enter  a final  order  announcing  thelr  decision.

For questions  about this  process,  contact  the  WSLCB Llcensing  Dlvlsion  at  (360)  864-1600  or  emall  us  at  localauthority@sp.lcb.wa.gov.

Sincerely,

Rebecca.  Smith

R e b e c c a S mit  h D i  r e c t  o r
Licensing  and  Regu  lation  Division

LIQ  864  07/10


















	Public Hearing Notice Posting-Development Agreement BP Products for ARCO AM-PM
	2023-07-25 Reg Agenda
	2023-07-11 Regular Meeting Minutes
	PD Stats for June
	Staff Report CD PW 7-25
	2023-07-25 Voucher Report
	Register Activity

	Ord 650 ARCO Development Agreement Ordinance
	AM 23-15 Liquor License Renew Dollar General Store #20770
	Dollar General liquor license
	2024 Evidence Contract - LC Evidence

